### **MINUTES**

# NORTH AURORA ROAD (NAR) PROJECT TEAM MEETING JULY 1, 2024, 1:30 P.M. NAPERVILLE EMPLOYEE UNIVERSITY CITY OF NAPERVILLE 400 S. EAGLE STREET NAPERVILLE, IL 60540

### I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL

Bill Novack, City of Naperville, called the NAR Project Team meeting to order at 1:33 p.m. The meeting was held in-person at the Naperville Employee University (NEU) room of the Naperville Municipal Center, 400 S. Eagle St., Naperville, IL.

#### Present:

(NAR Project Team Members Listed by Agency) City of Aurora: Tim Weidner; and Brian Witkowski

City of Naperville: Bill Novack; Andy Hynes; and Matt Calpin

Naperville Township: Eddie Bedford

## Absent:

Naperville Township: Paul Santucci

### Also Present:

Pat Lord, City of Naperville Legal Counsel; and Rebecca DeLarme, City of Naperville administrative staff

#### II. INTRODUCTIONS

DeLarme was introduced to the NAR Project Team and will be taking minutes for the meetings.

## III. PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no public comments.

# IV. APPOINTMENT OF NAR PROJECT TEAM CHAIR

A motion was made to appoint Novack as NAR Project Team Chairman by Weidner and seconded by Bedford. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY by voice vote.

#### V. NEW BUSINESS

a. Resolution of the NAR Project Team Approving Certain Agreements Pertaining to the North Aurora Road Widening Project

Novack reviewed the following items in which excerpts were included as part of the agenda packet, with Lord reminding the group that the entire documents were previously provided and available electronically.

# (i) ComEd North Aurora Road Tower Relocation Deposit Letter

Novack discussed the first item for consideration for the \$250,000 deposit needed by ComEd for the detailed engineering within the appropriate timeframe for the transmission tower relocation. Calpin discussed the cost which he believed to be split between the three agencies as this was a detailed engineering cost that is not a reimbursable construction cost and was in accordance with the 5<sup>th</sup> Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of Naperville (Naperville), the City of Aurora (Aurora), and Naperville Township (Township). He noted that only actual costs from ComEd would be reimbursed. Bedford expressed concern with splitting this expense and it was determined that this cost was in the confines of what was already agreed upon and considered to be part of construction engineering under the Local Share Funding agreement.

Weidner inquired about the status of the easement agreements with ComEd, Calpin reported they are currently awaiting design approval and as soon as received work can continue on the easement agreements. Lord continues to work with Legal Counsel from ComEd, the City of Aurora and Naperville Township on the easement templates.

# (ii) Construction and Maintenance Agreement with BNSF Railway Company

Novack explained that this agreement with BNSF, which is one of three, allows for the construction to be performed within BNSF's property. Witkowski inquired about the need for permits for future maintenance of the retaining walls. Lord noted that permits would always have to be obtained. Calpin advised that it was stated in the 5<sup>th</sup> IGA that Wisconsin Central LTD would own and maintain the southeast corner wall, Naperville would be responsible for the northeast retaining wall, and the Township would be responsible for the northwest and southwest retaining walls.

# (iii) Access Agreement with BNSF Railway Company

Novack noted that the Access Agreement with BNSF Railway Company was in line with what has been previously negotiated. There were no questions or concerns.

# (iv)Permanent Easement Agreement with BNSF Railway Company

Novack noted this agreement was for BNSF's property on the north side of our right-ofway on the west side of the bridge. There were no questions or concerns.

Weidner inquired about one vote per agency that was previously agreed upon and the multiple signature lines listed on the agreements. Lord explained that when the NAR Project Team was developed it was decided that it would be fair to allow one vote per agency since Naperville had more members. Each NAR Project Team member's

signature was included on the agreements because it was not determined which member from each agency would be signing the documents.

A motion to adopt the resolution of the NAR Project Team approving certain agreements pertaining to the North Aurora Road Widening Project, namely: (i) ComEd North Aurora Road Tower Relocation Deposit Letter; (ii) Construction and Maintenance Agreement with BNSF Railway Company; (iii) Access Agreement with BNSF Railway Company; and (iv) Permanent Easement Agreement with BNSF Railway Company, was made by Hynes and seconded by Bedford. MOTION PASSED with the following votes per agency:

## **Aye:** 3 -

City of Aurora (Weidner) City of Naperville (Novack) Naperville Township (Bedford)

#### b. Discussion of Wisconsin Central Ltd Force Account

Novack advised that the Wisconsin Central Ltd Force Account was received last week and that no action will be taken at this meeting. Calpin advised that the estimate was \$2.2M more than anticipated, flagging costs were not included, and they assumed we would be providing the bottom 8" of ballast. He is awaiting additional information from Wisconsin Central. Weidner inquired about the state tax that was added on the Operations Special Capital Project Estimate page. Calpin will also follow up on this item.

# c. Resolution of the NAR Project Team Approving Rules for Electronic Attendance

Lord reviewed the Rules for Electronic Attendance which states if a quorum of the members of the NAR Project Team are physically present at a meeting of the NAR Project Team, a majority of its members may allow up to three (3) members to attend the meeting by video or audio conference if said members: (a) give advance verbal or written notice to the Project Manager (Matt Calpin) of their intent to attend electronically, unless advance notice is impracticable; and (b) so long as the member(s) in question are prevented from physically attending due to: (i) personal illness or disability; (ii) employment purposes or the business of the public body; (iii) a family or other emergency; or (iv) unexpected childcare obligations.

Discussion followed on using a laptop computer at future meetings should the need arise for NAR Project Team Members to attend electronically, via Microsoft Teams. It was noted that at least four NAR Project Team members need to be present, in person. The Microsoft Teams meeting information will be provided to the NAR Project Team members but not listed on the public notice.

A motion was made by Calpin and seconded by Witkowski to adopt the resolution of the NAR Project Team approving the rules for electronic attendance. MOTION PASSED by the following votes per agency:

# **Aye:** 3 -

City of Aurora (Weidner) City of Naperville (Novack) Naperville Township (Bedford)

### VI. ANNOUNCEMENTS/NAR PROJECT TEAM COMMENTS

Bedford inquired about the replacement of a NAR Project Team member with Lord requesting that the Project Team be provided with notification of the replacement and the new member's information.

Lord reported that the current letting date is September 20, 2024 and that all documents would need to be executed by July 29, 2024. The next meeting of the NAR Project Team was tentatively scheduled for Thursday, July 18, 2024 at 1:30 p.m. in the NEU at the Naperville Municipal Center. Lord advised they are hoping to include the following items on the July 18<sup>th</sup> agenda: all of the Wisconsin Central Ltd. agreements, the Design and Construction Agreement with Enbridge Energy, the ONEOK agreement, the ComEd Easement Agreement, and the ComEd Reimbursement Agreement.

Coordination of the agreement signatures was discussed with Lord reminding the Project Team that they have been delegated the authority to approve the agreements on each agency's behalf. The signatures of Naperville's City Manager and Aurora's Mayor were required on the ComEd North Aurora Road Tower Relocation Deposit Letter.

Novack requested that Calpin provide Bedford with an account of payments made to date and what is owed by the Township per the last IGA.

## VII. ADJOURNMENT

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Weidner and seconded by Hynes. The meeting adjourned at 2:24 p.m. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

Respectfully submitted by, Rebecca DeLarme, City of Naperville staff